

BY-LAWS OF THE WEST TENNESSEE QUARTER HORSE ASSOCIATION
Revised December 2007

ARTICLE I – NAME AND PURPOSE

Section 1: The Association was organized January 12, 1979 and shall be known as the West Tennessee Quarter Horse Association (WTQHA) and shall at all times be operated and conducted as a non-profit association in accordance with the laws of the STATE OF TENNESSEE, and shall have such rights and powers as are granted to such associations.

Section 2: The principal place of business of the Association shall be Jackson, Madison County, Tennessee, but its members may be residents of any state, territory, or county, and business may be carried on at any place convenient to such members or officials as may be participating. Only bona fide residents of West Tennessee may hold office in this Association. West Tennessee is defined as all of Tennessee located west of the Tennessee River.

ARTICLE II – MEMBERSHIP AND DUES

Section 1: Members of this Association shall be admitted, retained and expelled in accordance with such rules and regulations as the Board of Directors may, from time to time, adopt.

1A) a yearly single membership fee determined by Board of Directors entitles West Tennessee Members one (1) vote during the membership meeting.

1B) a yearly family membership fee determined by Board of Directors, entitles West Tennessee members, the husband, wife and Children, to all benefits of membership and two (2) votes during the membership meeting.

Section 2: Meetings of the members shall be held at such time and place as may be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors for the purpose of electing directors, and for the transactions of such other business as may be brought before the meeting. All elected offices will be by secret ballot. Those voting must be registered at the door of the meeting. Notice of such meetings shall be given by mailing a notice stating the time and place of such meeting to the last known address of each member in good standing, not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the date of such meetings.

Section 3: Special meetings of the members may be held at such time and place as may be designated by written notice to the members of the Board of Directors, by not less than twenty-five (25%) of the members then in good standing. Notice of each such special meeting shall state the purpose of the meeting and shall be given in the same manner as provided with respect to notice of membership meetings.

Section 4: Any By-Law change requires 2/3 majority of the members present at the membership meeting and the mail in votes that meet the qualifications. All members shall be notified fifteen (15) days prior to meeting of any possible changes.

Section 5: All members of WTQHA shall receive a copy of the By-Laws upon joining the Association.

Section 6: Robert's Rules of Order shall prevail at all WTQHA meetings.

ARTICLE III – MEETINGS

Section 1: The business and property of the Association shall be managed and controlled by the Board of Directors.

Section 2: A majority of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, but if at any meeting of the Board there may be less than a quorum present, a majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum shall be present.

Section 3: In the case of any vacancy in the Board of Directors by death, resignation, disqualification or removal, the remaining Directors by vote of a majority thereof may elect a successor director for the unexpired term.

3A) Any Director missing two consecutive Board Meetings shall be reviewed before being removed by the Board.

3B) No voting substitutes will be allowed; however, any WTQHA member may attend any and all Board Meetings.

Section 4: A regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held within the following calendar month of the annual membership meeting. No notice shall be required for such regular meeting of the Board.

Section 5: Special meeting of the Board of Directors or membership, shall be held whenever called by two-thirds (2/3) of the Directors in office. The Secretary shall give notice of each special meeting by mailing or telephoning the same to each Director at least fifteen (15) days prior to such meeting; but such notice may be waived by any Director. Unless otherwise indicated in the notice thereof, any and all business may be transacted at a special meeting. At any meeting attended by all Directors, any business may be transacted.

Section 6: The written contracts of the Association shall be executed on behalf of the WTQHA by the Association Secretary. There shall be a written contract between all hired judges, staff and show facility, state the agreed terms of service to WTQHA.

Section 7: The Board of Directors shall have the power and authority to make, amend, repeal and enforce such rules and regulations, not contrary to law or the Certification of Incorporation of these By-Laws as they may deem proper relating to the conduct, management and activities of the Association, the admission, classification, qualification, suspension and expulsion of members, removal, suspension and expulsion of any Board Member, the fixing and collecting of dues and fees, registration, auditing of books and

records, the awarding of championships, and the conduction of shows, contest, exhibitions, races, sales and social functions and other details, relating to the general purpose of the Association all however, subject to revision or amendment by the members at any regular or special meeting. 7A) Any additional activities to be scheduled during a WTQHA event must have a 30-day notice prior to the event to the WTQHA Board of Directors with voting by the majority of the Board of Directors plus a representative from the University of Tennessee, Martin Agriculture Pavilion (or facility management).

Section 8: The Board of Directors from time to time may create and empower other committees, general or special.

ARTICLE IV – OFFICERS

Section 1: The Directors shall consist of eight (8) representatives with one (1) from each district and four (4) at large. Only one (1) director can be elected from each family membership, or individual memberships of the same mailing address.

Section 2: The National Director, if a resident of West Tennessee, shall be a member of the Board of Directors and shall have voting privileges.

Section 3: A Chairperson and Vice Chairperson shall be elected from the members of the Board, by the members of the Board of Directors.

Section 4: The Directors shall be elected by general membership with one (1) Director from each district and four (4) at large from the following districts: District I – West of Highway 45 East and North of Highway 412. District II – East of Highway 45 East and North of I-40. District III – West of Highway 45 and South of Highway 412 (including Shelby County). District IV – East of Highway 45 and South of I-40.

Section 5: The Chairperson of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors. The Board shall see that all By-Laws, rules and regulations of the Association are enforced.

Section 6: In the absence of the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall perform the duties of the Chairperson.

Section 7: The Secretary-Treasurer shall be appointed by the Board of Directors and will perform the duties of the position in one of the following capacities: A) The Secretary-Treasurer will not receive monetary compensation but will possess voting privileges as a member of the Board of Directors, B) The Secretary-Treasurer will receive monetary compensation at an amount determined by the Board of Directors. No compensated employee (ex. Secretary) shall have voting privileges or hold a position as a Board Member. Additionally, the Secretary-Treasurer will perform the following duties: He/She shall keep the minutes of all Membership and Director's Meetings. He/She shall be the custodian for the safekeeping of all documents and records of the Association.

He/She shall be ex-officio Secretary of all committees appointed by his/her office to the Board of Directors when demanded and to all membership meetings and shall perform other such duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors. He/She shall receive, disburse and account for all funds of the Association by itemized statement in detail to each membership meeting of the members and to the Board of Directors when demanded. He/She shall maintain the point standings of the members and their horses participating in all of the shows that are WTQHA approved. Points will be reported monthly as members become qualified.

Section 8: The Board of Directors shall at the end of the show season (after the Futurity) and before the General Membership Meeting, review (audit) the financial records of the Association and correct any discrepancies before the new Board of Directors assumes responsibilities.

Section 9: The Youth Director shall be an appointed position by the Board of Directors. He/She will have voting privileges at all Board of Directors Meetings. He/She will act in an advisory capacity to the youth as needed.

Section 10: Mailed in ballots will be allowed at the General Membership Meetings. Mailed in ballots will be counted provided; A) It is signed, B) It is witnessed by a WTQHA member, C) It has been mailed to the Secretary-Treasurer, (postmarked five (5) days before the meeting) and it is opened at the meeting, D) The outside of the envelope is to be marked "Ballot of _____" (members name).

ARTICLE V - POINTS

Section 1: Only AQHA shows that are sponsored by WTQHA and meet the guidelines of the WTQHA will be WTQHA point shows, and count for year-end awards as prescribed in Section 2, Article V.

Points shall be awarded to all qualified horses and exhibitors entered and exhibited in WTQHA approved shows and in approved halter and performance events on the basis of:

1A) One (1) point for participation

1B) Entries placing in the top nine (9) horses will receive additional points for each entry that they place above. (ex. 15 horses in the class, 1st place = 15 points, 2nd place = 14 points, down through the 9th place horse receiving 7 points.) All other entries will receive only one (1) point for participation.

Section 2: To qualify for year-end awards, the horse must be exhibited a minimum of ten (10) times. Should a horse be exhibited more than the ten (10) shows required to qualify, then only the best ten (10) shows will be counted, with the exception of the 2YR Old Snaffle Bit and longe line, only six (6) shows are required to qualify and your six (6) best will be counted and the Weanling Halter classes only four (4) shows are required to qualify and your four (4) best will be counted.

Section 3: Owner of horse and exhibitor of the horse shall be a member in good standing of the WTQHA in order for the horse to accumulate points for year end awards. Open

points shall be awarded to qualifying horses regardless of exhibitors or transfer of ownership so long as WTQHA requirements are met. Points in the amateur and youth divisions are to be compiled on a one horse – one amateur or one youth basis and will count toward year end awards so long as the amateur or youth ownership remains the same. In the event the horse is sold, all past points remain with the original owner and a new start must be made by the new exhibitor.

Section 4: All-Around High Point Awards: Points shall be awarded to all qualified horses and exhibitors entered and exhibited in WTQHA approved shows and in approved halter and performance events on the basis of: 1. one point for participation. 2. Entries placing in the top nine (9) horses will receive additional points for each entry that they place above. To qualify for year-end awards the horse must be exhibited a minimum of ten (10) times in the halter class for that division or the halter class designated for that division, and ten (10) times in each of two performance classes, one in each of two separate performance categories in that division. The horse must also earn a minimum of fifteen (15) WTQHA points in the halter class and ten (10) in each of the performance classes. Should a horse be exhibited more than the ten (10) shows required to qualify, all shows in all qualifying classes will count. Qualifying standards being met, all additional points earned in all classes in that division will be counted.

4A) WTQHA shall offer seven (7) All-Around awards at the end of each show season: One Open Division Title, Three Youth Division Titles: 13 years of age and under, 14-18 years of age, and All Age Novice Youth. Three Amateur Division Titles: Amateur, Select Amateur (50 and over), and Novice Amateur.

4B) Open Division, a minimum of fifteen (15) WTQHA open division halter points and a minimum of ten (10) WTQHA points in each of two (2) separate open division performance classes, one class in each of two (2) separate performance categories, as listed in the AQHA Handbook must be earned. If qualifications are met, all shows in all open division classes will count.

4C) Amateur Division, a minimum of fifteen (15) WTQHA amateur division halter points and a minimum of ten (10) WTQHA amateur division points in each of two (2) separate performance classes, one class in each of two (2) separate performance categories, as listed in the AQHA Handbook must be earned. If qualifications are met, all shows in all amateur division classes will count.

4D) Select Amateur All-Around, a minimum of fifteen (15) WTQHA amateur division halter points and a minimum of ten (10) WTQHA Select Amateur points in each of two (2) separate performance classes, one class in each of two (2) separate performance categories as listed in the AQHA Handbook must be earned. If qualifications are met, all shows in all select amateur division classes will count.

4E) Novice Amateur Division, a minimum of fifteen (15) WTQHA amateur division halter points and a minimum of ten (10) WTQHA Novice Amateur points in each of two (2) separate performance classes, one class in each of two (2) separate performance categories as listed in the AQHA Handbook must be earned. If qualifications are met, all shows in all novice amateur division classes will count.

4F) Youth Division, a minimum of fifteen (15) WTQHA youth division halter points and a minimum of ten (10) WTQHA youth division points in each of two (2) separate performance classes, one class in each of two (2) separate performance

categories as listed in the AQHA Handbook must be earned. If qualifications are met, all shows in all youth division classes will count.

4G) Novice Youth All-Around, a minimum of fifteen (15) WTQHA youth division halter points and a minimum of ten (10) WTQHA novice youth division points in each of two (2) separate performance classes, one class in each of two (2) separate performance categories as listed in the AQHA Handbook must be earned. If qualifications are met, all shows in all novice youth division classes will count.

Section 5: In the event of point ties in any class for awards, the horse that has the greatest number of first place wins shall be the winner. If there is still a tie, there will be two (2) awards given to the tied horses or exhibitors.

ARTICLE VI - FUTURITY

Section 1: The WTQHA shall have a Halter and Performance Futurity each year.

Section 2: The WTQHA Board of Directors shall appoint a five (5) person Futurity Committee. That Committee will elect its Chairman.

Section 3: The Futurity will be open to owners and exhibitors that are current members of WTQHA without regards to their living boundaries set forth in the WTQHA By-Laws. *Stallion Eligibility will be limited to any county within a 250 mile radius of the center of Humboldt, Tennessee. (Highway 45W and Hwy 79 intersection). ** Amended December 2007*

Section 4: The Futurity Committee shall be responsible for establishing the Futurity Rules, within the guidelines set in the WTQHA By-Laws and for raising the necessary money for the Futurity Awards.

Section 5: The Futurity Rules shall be sent out to all WTQHA members no later than (30) days prior to the first Futurity payment deadline.

ARTICLE VII - JUDGES

Section 1: The selection of the AQHA Judges of the WTQHA sponsored shows shall be the responsibility of the WTQHA Board of Directors.

Article VIII

Section 1: In the event of a question that is not answered directly by the WTQHA By-Laws, the question will be settled by the AQHA Rules and Regulation Handbook.

Amended this 7th day of March 2008.

Jill Jones Dinning, WTQHA Secretary Revised December 2007